

1 State of Arkansas
2 92nd General Assembly
3 Regular Session, 2019
4

As Engrossed: H3/18/19

A Bill

HOUSE BILL 1685

5 By: Representative Cozart
6 By: Senators J. English, E. Cheatham
7

For An Act To Be Entitled

9 AN ACT TO AMEND VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF THE ARKANSAS
10 CODE CONCERNING PUBLIC SCHOOL FUNDING AMOUNTS; TO
11 DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.
12
13

Subtitle

15 TO AMEND VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF THE
16 ARKANSAS CODE CONCERNING PUBLIC SCHOOL
17 FUNDING AMOUNTS; AND TO DECLARE AN
18 EMERGENCY.
19
20

21 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ARKANSAS:
22

23 SECTION 1. Arkansas Code § 6-20-2305(a)(2), concerning per-student
24 foundation funding amounts, is amended to read as follows:

25 (2)(A) For the ~~2017-2018~~ 2019-2020 school year, the foundation
26 funding amount is equal to ~~six thousand seven hundred thirteen dollars~~
27 ~~(\$6,713)~~ six thousand eight hundred ninety-nine dollars (\$6,899) multiplied
28 by the school district's average daily membership for the previous school
29 year.

30 (B) For the ~~2018-2019~~ 2020-2021 school year and each
31 school year thereafter, the foundation funding amount is equal to ~~six~~
32 ~~thousand seven hundred eighty-one dollars (\$6,781)~~ seven thousand eighteen
33 dollars (\$7,018) multiplied by the school district's average daily membership
34 for the previous school year.
35

36 SECTION 2. Arkansas Code § 6-20-2305(b)(2)(A), concerning per-student



1 categorical funding amounts for alternative learning environments, is amended
2 to read as follows:

3 (2)(A)(i) For each school year, alternative learning environment
4 funding shall be ~~four thousand six hundred forty dollars (\$4,640)~~ four
5 thousand seven hundred dollars (\$4,700) multiplied by the number of
6 identified alternative learning environment students enrolled during the
7 previous school year.

8 (ii) Funding for students in alternative learning
9 environments shall be distributed based on rules promulgated by the State
10 Board of Education.

11

12 SECTION 3. Arkansas Code § 6-20-2305(b)(3), concerning per-student
13 state categorical funding amounts for English-language learners, is amended
14 to read as follows:

15 (3)(A) For ~~each~~ the 2019-2020 school year, funding for students
16 who are identified as English-language learners shall be ~~three hundred~~
17 ~~thirty-eight dollars (\$338)~~ three hundred forty-five dollars (\$345) for each
18 identified English-language learner.

19 (B) Funding for English-language learners shall be
20 distributed to public school districts for students who have been identified
21 as not proficient in the English language based upon a state-approved English
22 proficiency assessment instrument.

23 (C) Funds allocated for English-language learners to
24 public school districts under this subchapter shall be expended only for
25 eligible activities as identified in current rules promulgated by the State
26 Board of Education and are a supplement to funding for national school lunch
27 students provided in subdivision (b)(4) of this section.

28 (D) For the 2020-2021 school year and each school year
29 thereafter, funding for students who are identified as English-language
30 learners shall be three hundred fifty-two dollars (\$352) for each identified
31 English-language learner.

32

33 SECTION 4. Arkansas Code § 6-20-2305(b)(5), concerning per-student
34 state categorical funding amounts for professional development is amended to
35 read as follows:

36 (5)(A) For ~~each~~ the 2019-2020 school year, professional

1 development funding shall be equal to an amount of up to thirty-two dollars
2 and forty cents (\$32.40) multiplied by the school district's previous school
3 year average daily membership.

4 (B) For the 2020-2021 school year, professional
5 development funding shall be equal to an amount of up to forty dollars and
6 eighty cents (\$40.80) multiplied by the school district's previous school
7 year average daily membership.

8 ~~(B)(C)~~ Funding for professional development for teachers
9 in Arkansas public schools required under the Teacher Excellence and Support
10 System, § 6-17-2801 et seq., other law or rule, or by the school district
11 shall be used for professional development activities and materials that:

12 (i) Improve the knowledge, skills, and effectiveness
13 of teachers;

14 (ii) Address the knowledge and skills of
15 administrators and paraprofessionals concerning effective instructional
16 strategies, methods, and skills;

17 (iii) Lead to improved student academic achievement;
18 and

19 (iv) Provide training for school bus drivers as
20 outlined in rules promulgated by the Commission for Arkansas Public School
21 Academic Facilities and Transportation.

22 ~~(C)(i)(D)(i)~~ Additional For the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021
23 school years, additional funding up to twelve million five hundred thousand
24 dollars (\$12,500,000), provided for professional development above the amount
25 in ~~subdivision~~ subdivisions (b)(5)(A) and (B) of this section shall be used
26 by the Department of Education for the development and administration of
27 professional learning communities for the benefit of public school districts.

28 (ii)(a) The Department of Education shall promulgate
29 rules to administer the additional professional development funding under
30 subdivision ~~(b)(5)(C)(i)~~ (b)(5)(D)(i) of this section.

31 (b) The Department of Education may partner
32 with or choose a person, firm, corporation, or education service cooperative
33 to provide the knowledge, skills, experience, and expertise for the
34 development of a research-based process for the implementation of
35 professional learning communities.

36

1 SECTION 5. Arkansas Code § 6-20-2309 is amended to read as follows:
 2 6-20-2309. Enhanced transportation funding.

3 For the ~~2017-2018~~ 2019-2020 school year and the ~~2018-2019~~ 2020-2021
 4 school year, in addition to the foundation funding provided to a school
 5 district under § 6-20-2305(a)(2), the Department of Education shall
 6 distribute enhanced transportation funding to school districts each school
 7 year in the following amounts:

8	101000	DEWITT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$36,830	<u>\$0</u>
9	104000	STUTTGART SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
10	201000	CROSSETT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
11	203000	HAMBURG SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$35,822	<u>\$60,295</u>
12	302000	COTTER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
13	303000	MOUNTAIN HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$15,075	<u>\$25,911</u>
14	304000	NORFORK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$39,412	<u>\$104,796</u>
15	401000	BENTONVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$1,631	<u>\$0</u>
16	402000	DECATUR SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$3,002	<u>\$0</u>
17	403000	GENTRY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
18	404000	GRAVETTE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$21,961	<u>\$17,117</u>
19	405000	ROGERS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
20	406000	SILOAM SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
21	407000	PEA RIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
22	501000	ALPENA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$24,426	<u>\$24,246</u>
23	502000	BERGMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$8,813	<u>\$0</u>
24	503000	HARRISON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$5,014	<u>\$0</u>
25	504000	OMAHA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$40,566	<u>\$51,867</u>
26	505000	VALLEY SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$5,781</u>
27	506000	LEAD HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$53,613	<u>\$112,425</u>
28	601000	HERMITAGE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$76,273	<u>\$47,253</u>
29	602000	WARREN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
30	701000	HAMPTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$41,506	<u>\$33,573</u>
31	801000	BERRYVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$18,114</u>
32	802000	EUREKA SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
33	803000	GREEN FOREST SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$14,900	<u>\$0</u>
34	901000	DERMOTT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$18,886	<u>\$53,863</u>
35	903000	LAKESIDE SCHOOL DIST. (CHICOT)	\$30,124	<u>\$82,635</u>
36	1002000	ARKADELPHIA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,750	<u>\$2,631</u>

1	1003000	GURDON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$40,326	<u>\$43,154</u>
2	1101000	CORNING SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$28,508	<u>\$60,720</u>
3	1104000	PIGGOTT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
4	1106000	RECTOR SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$73</u>
5	1201000	CONCORD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$26,090	<u>\$93,581</u>
6	1202000	HEBER SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
7	1203000	QUITMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
8	1204000	WEST SIDE SCHOOL DIST. (CLEBURNE)	\$0	
9	1304000	WOODLAWN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$31,972	<u>\$24,379</u>
10	1305000	CLEVELAND COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$48,382	<u>\$9,201</u>
11	1402000	MAGNOLIA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$24,184	<u>\$21,526</u>
12	1408000	EMERSON-TAYLOR-BRADLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$12,874	<u>\$0</u>
13	1503000	NEMO VISTA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
14	1505000	WONDERVIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$31,228	<u>16,462</u>
15	1507000	SOUTH CONWAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,076	<u>\$7,675</u>
16	1601000	BAY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
17	1602000	WESTSIDE CONS. SCH. DIST. (CRAIGHEAD)	\$8,495	<u>\$22,962</u>
18	1603000	BROOKLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
19	1605000	BUFFALO IS. CENTRAL SCH. DIST.	\$0	
20	1608000	JONESBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
21	1611000	NETTLETON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$437	<u>\$17,312</u>
22	1612000	VALLEY VIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
23	1613000	RIVERSIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$4,159	<u>\$0</u>
24	1701000	ALMA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
25	1702000	CEDARVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$28,325	<u>\$66,366</u>
26	1703000	MOUNTAINBURG SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$39,882	<u>\$103,162</u>
27	1704000	MULBERRY PVB SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$41,304	<u>\$0</u>
28	1705000	VAN BUREN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
29	1802000	EARLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$54,471</u>
30	1803000	WEST MEMPHIS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
31	1804000	MARION SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$703	<u>\$5,539</u>
32	1901000	CROSS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$46,007	<u>\$45,233</u>
33	1905000	WYNNE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,554	<u>\$0</u>
34	2002000	FORDYCE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
35	2104000	DUMAS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$19,246	<u>\$0</u>
36	2105000	MCGEHEE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,061	<u>\$3,675</u>

1	2202000	DREW CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$49,873	<u>\$61,475</u>
2	2203000	MONTICELLO SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
3	2301000	CONWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
4	2303000	GREENBRIER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
5	2304000	GUY-PERKINS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$9,996	<u>\$0</u>
6	2305000	MAYFLOWER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
7	2306000	MT. VERNON/ENOLA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$26,117	<u>\$5,980</u>
8	2307000	VILONIA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$1,038	<u>\$9,489</u>
9	2402000	CHARLESTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
10	2403000	COUNTY LINE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$41,922	<u>\$64,254</u>
11	2404000	OZARK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,639	<u>\$18,881</u>
12	2501000	MAMMOTH SPRING SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$46,680	<u>\$49,654</u>
13	2502000	SALEM SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$32,857	<u>\$79,381</u>
14	2503000	VIOLA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$56,774	<u>\$120,815</u>
15	2601000	CUTTER-MORNING STAR SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
16	2602000	FOUNTAIN LAKE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
17	2603000	HOT SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
18	2604000	JESSIEVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$3,736	<u>\$0</u>
19	2605000	LAKE HAMILTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$14,923	<u>\$0</u>
20	2606000	LAKESIDE SCHOOL DIST. (GARLAND)	\$0	
21	2607000	MOUNTAIN PINE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$15,554	<u>\$41,072</u>
22	2703000	POYEN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
23	2705000	SHERIDAN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$6,262	<u>\$0</u>
24	2803000	MARMADUKE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$19,129	<u>\$7,970</u>
25	2807000	GREENE COUNTY TECH SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
26	2808000	PARAGOULD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
27	2901000	BLEVINS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$19,290	<u>\$0</u>
28	2903000	HOPE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
29	2906000	SPRING HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
30	3001000	BISMARCK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$35,323	<u>\$84,856</u>
31	3002000	GLEN ROSE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$8,056	<u>\$0</u>
32	3003000	MAGNET COVE SCHOOL DIST.	\$0	
33	3004000	MALVERN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$12,737	<u>\$26,571</u>
34	3005000	OUACHITA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
35	3102000	DIERKS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$6,716	<u>\$37,914</u>
36	3104000	MINERAL SPRINGS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	

1	3105000	NASHVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
2	3201000	BATESVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$14,741	<u>\$36,385</u>
3	3209000	SOUTHSIDE SCHOOL DIST. (INDEPENDENCE)	\$13,780	<u>\$0</u>
4	3211000	MIDLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$24,489	<u>\$47,872</u>
5	3212000	CEDAR RIDGE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$37,509	<u>\$73,912</u>
6	3301000	CALICO ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$34,452	<u>\$19,654</u>
7	3302000	MELBOURNE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$71,653</u>
8	3306000	IZARD COUNTY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DIST.	\$63,541	<u>\$146,754</u>
9	3403000	NEWPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$18,996	<u>\$0</u>
10	3405000	JACKSON CO. SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$1,805</u>
11	3502000	DOLLARWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,100	<u>\$83,150</u>
12	3505000	PINE BLUFF SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$3,969</u>
13	3509000	WATSON CHAPEL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$23,977	<u>\$47,591</u>
14	3510000	WHITE HALL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
15	3601000	CLARKSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
16	3604000	LAMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$13,557	<u>\$0</u>
17	3606000	WESTSIDE SCHOOL DIST. (JOHNSON)	\$9,332	<u>\$18,693</u>
18	3704000	LAFAYETTE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$43,482	<u>\$137,432</u>
19	3804000	HOXIE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,324	<u>\$0</u>
20	3806000	SLOAN-HENDRIX SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$24,050	<u>\$0</u>
21	3809000	HILLCREST SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
22	3810000	LAWRENCE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
23	3904000	LEE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$1,369	<u>\$59,384</u>
24	4003000	STAR CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$22,475	<u>\$67,480</u>
25	4101000	ASHDOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$22,572	<u>\$68,722</u>
26	4102000	FOREMAN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$36,029	<u>\$0</u>
27	4201000	BOONEVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$7,803	<u>\$23,921</u>
28	4202000	MAGAZINE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$20,633	<u>\$22,012</u>
29	4203000	PARIS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$7,657	<u>\$17,783</u>
30	4204000	SCRANTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$27,669	<u>\$5,180</u>
31	4301000	LONOKE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
32	4302000	ENGLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$12,235	<u>\$17,152</u>
33	4303000	CARLISLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$9,573	<u>\$8,993</u>
34	4304000	CABOT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
35	4401000	HUNTSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$19,364	<u>\$31,242</u>
36	4501000	FLIPPIN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$18,233	<u>\$0</u>

1	4502000	YELLVILLE-SUMMIT SCHOOL DIST.	\$35,834	<u>\$68,646</u>
2	4602000	GENOA CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$7,992	<u>\$0</u>
3	4603000	FOUKE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$23,193	<u>\$85,220</u>
4	4605000	TEXARKANA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$4,256	<u>\$0</u>
5	4701000	ARMOREL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
6	4702000	BLYTHEVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
7	4706000	RIVERCREST SCHOOL DIST.	\$13,257	<u>\$43,339</u>
8	4708000	GOSNELL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$3,866	<u>\$12,761</u>
9	4712000	MANILA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
10	4713000	OSCEOLA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
11	4801000	BRINKLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$4,288</u>
12	4802000	CLARENDON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
13	4901000	CADDO HILLS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$48,468	<u>\$148,828</u>
14	4902000	MOUNT IDA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$42,109	<u>\$49,776</u>
15	5006000	PRESCOTT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
16	5008000	NEVADA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$35,539	<u>\$35,136</u>
17	5102000	JASPER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
18	5106000	DEER/MT. JUDEA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
19	5201000	BEARDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$27,490	<u>\$54,835</u>
20	5204000	CAMDEN FAIRVIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,029	<u>\$66,684</u>
21	5205000	HARMONY GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT (OUACHITA)	\$0	
22	5301000	EAST END SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$11,565</u>
23	5303000	PERRYVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$28,076	<u>\$41,602</u>
24	5401000	BARTON-LEXA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
25	5403000	HELENA/W. HELENA SCHOOL DIST.	\$9,948	<u>\$48,197</u>
26	5404000	MARVELL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
27	5502000	CENTERPOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$22,013	<u>\$32,842</u>
28	5503000	KIRBY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$49,112	<u>\$40,592</u>
29	5504000	SOUTH PIKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$27,125	<u>\$31,636</u>
30	5602000	HARRISBURG SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$9,487	<u>\$36,518</u>
31	5604000	MARKED TREE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
32	5605000	TRUMANN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
33	5608000	EAST POINSETT CO. SCHOOL DIST.	\$0	
34	5703000	MENA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$12,741	<u>\$60,868</u>
35	5706000	OUACHITA RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
36	5707000	COSSATOT RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	

1	5801000	ATKINS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$30,127	<u>\$26,988</u>
2	5802000	DOVER SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$5,112	<u>\$26,874</u>
3	5803000	HECTOR SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$50,512	<u>\$99,997</u>
4	5804000	POTTSVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
5	5805000	RUSSELLVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
6	5901000	DES ARC SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$28,225	<u>\$22,991</u>
7	5903000	HAZEN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$21,276	<u>\$62,716</u>
8	6001000	LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$65,862</u>
9	6002000	N. LITTLE ROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
10	6003000	PULASKI COUNTY SPECIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
11	6004000	JACKSONVILLE NORTH PULASKI SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>87,187</u>
12	6102000	MAYNARD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$45,013	<u>\$58,172</u>
13	6103000	POCAHONTAS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$1,036	<u>\$0</u>
14	6201000	FORREST CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,830	<u>\$0</u>
15	6205000	PALESTINE-WHEATLEY SCH. DIST.	\$0	
16	6301000	BAUXITE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
17	6302000	BENTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
18	6303000	BRYANT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
19	6304000	HARMONY GROVE SCH. DIST. (SALINE)	\$0	
20	6401000	WALDRON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,090	<u>\$0</u>
21	6502000	SEARCY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$47,437	<u>\$8,561</u>
22	6505000	OZARK MOUNTAIN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
23	6601000	FORT SMITH SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
24	6602000	GREENWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$5,299	<u>\$117</u>
25	6603000	HACKETT SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$28,607	<u>\$0</u>
26	6605000	LAVACA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
27	6606000	MANSFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$26,316	<u>\$51,141</u>
28	6701000	DE QUEEN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$10,685	<u>\$0</u>
29	6703000	HORATIO SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	<u>\$737</u>
30	6802000	CAVE CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,087	<u>\$34,174</u>
31	6804000	HIGHLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$37,781	<u>\$42,378</u>
32	6901000	MOUNTAIN VIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
33	7001000	EL DORADO SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$2,319	<u>\$0</u>
34	7003000	JUNCTION CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$34,804	<u>\$91,056</u>
35	7007000	PARKERS CHAPEL SCHOOL DIST.	\$0	
36	7008000	SMACKOVER-NORPHLET	\$23,271	<u>\$0</u>

1	7009000	STRONG-HUTTIG SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$30,959	<u>\$101,177</u>
2	7102000	CLINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$30,422	<u>\$23,915</u>
3	7104000	SHIRLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$23,041	<u>\$54,906</u>
4	7105000	SOUTH SIDE SCH. DIST. (VAN BUREN)	\$0	
5	7201000	ELKINS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$16,085	<u>\$23,158</u>
6	7202000	FARMINGTON SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
7	7203000	FAYETTEVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
8	7204000	GREENLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$1,659	<u>\$0</u>
9	7205000	LINCOLN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$15,961	<u>\$53,454</u>
10	7206000	PRAIRIE GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
11	7207000	SPRINGDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
12	7208000	WEST FORK SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$11,812	<u>\$48,426</u>
13	7301000	BALD KNOB SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
14	7302000	BEEBE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$2,171	<u>\$0</u>
15	7303000	BRADFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$21,136	<u>\$22,442</u>
16	7304000	WHITE CO. CENTRAL SCHOOL DIST.	\$6,013	<u>\$0</u>
17	7307000	RIVERVIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
18	7309000	PANGBURN SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$7,634	<u>\$43,942</u>
19	7310000	ROSE BUD SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$23,144	<u>\$89,778</u>
20	7311000	SEARCY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
21	7401000	AUGUSTA SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$14,717	<u>\$0</u>
22	7403000	MCCRORY SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
23	7503000	DANVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$9,052	<u>\$0</u>
24	7504000	DARDANELLE SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$0	
25	7509000	WESTERN YELL CO. SCHOOL DIST.	\$15,777	<u>\$31,018</u>
26	7510000	TWO RIVERS SCHOOL DISTRICT	\$19,074	<u>\$100,452</u>

27

28 SECTION 6. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. It is found and determined by the
29 General Assembly of the State of Arkansas that funding for public schools is
30 the obligation of the state; that ensuring that adequate funding is provided
31 is the duty of the General Assembly; and that this act is immediately
32 necessary to ensure that funding is provided for the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021
33 school years so that school districts can budget accordingly. Therefore, an
34 emergency is declared to exist, and this act being immediately necessary for
35 the preservation of the public peace, health, and safety shall become
36 effective on:

- 1 (1) The date of its approval by the Governor;
- 2 (2) If the bill is neither approved nor vetoed by the Governor,
- 3 the expiration of the period of time during which the Governor may veto the
- 4 bill; or
- 5 (3) If the bill is vetoed by the Governor and the veto is
- 6 overridden, the date the last house overrides the veto.

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

/s/Cozart